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DAVID J. RAPPORT - SBN 054384 
RAPPORT AND MARSTON 
405 West Perkins Street 
Ukiah, CA 95482 
Telephone: (707) 462-6846 
FAX: (707) 462-4235 
email: drapport@pacbell.net 
 
 
Attorney for Defendant Owens Valley 
Indian Housing Authority 
 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 

JULIE FRITCHER, PRO SE 

 

                    Plaintiff, 

 

          v. 

 

OWENS VALLEY INDIAN HOUSING 

AUTHORITY, et al., 

                      Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No.:  1 11 CV 002071 AWI JLT 
 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO 

DISMISS 

 

[F.R.C.P. Rule 12(b)(6)] 
 
Date:              February 6, 2012 
Time:             1:30 p.m. 
Courtroom:    2, 8

th
 Floor 

   
  Judge: Hon. Anthony W. Ishii 
 

 )  

  

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, on February 6, 2012 at 1:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as 

may be heard, defendants Owens Valley Indian Housing Authority (“OVIHA”), Robert L. Zucco, 

and Linda Puckett will, and hereby do, move this Court for an order dismissing the action for 

failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure. 

 This motion will be made in Courtroom 2, 8
th
 Floor, before the Honorable Anthony W. 

Ishii, United States District Judge, at the above-entitled Court located at 2500 Tulare Street, 

Fresno, CA, 93721. 

 Defendants bring the motion on the grounds that plaintiff fails to state a claim for which 

relief can be granted because the statute on which she relies applies to federal agencies only. 
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Accordingly, defendants move for dismissal of the Complaint in its entirety. 

 This motion is made upon this Notice, the attached Memorandum of Points and 

Authorities, and all pleadings, records, and or documents on file with the Court in this action, and 

upon such oral and/or documentary evidence as may be presented at, before, and after the hearing 

of this motion. 

  

Dated: January 6, 2011    RAPPORT AND MARSTON 

 

       /s/ David J. Rapport     

      By: ___________________________ 

       David J. Rapport, Attorney for Defendant 
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PROOF OF SERVICE 

 I am employed in the County of Mendocino, State of California.  I am over the age of 18 

years and not a party to the within action.  My business address is that of Law Offices of Rapport 

and Marston, 405 West Perkins Street, Ukiah, CA. 95482. 

 On January 6, 2012, I served the below listed documents described as: 

 
 1. Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss; 
 2. Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of Motion to Dismiss; and 
 3. Declaration of Robert Zucco in Support of Plaintiff’s Motion to Dismiss 

 

by placing a true and correct copy in a sealed envelope with postage thereon fully prepaid at the 

United States Postal Service, at Ukiah, California, addressed as follows:  

 

Julie Fritcher 

P. O. Box 1134 

Lone Pine, CA 93545 

 

 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing is true and correct; executed on January 6, 2012, at Ukiah, California. 

       /s/ Christine Feller 

                                                             

       Christine Feller 
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DAVID J. RAPPORT - SBN 054384 
RAPPORT AND MARSTON 
405 West Perkins Street 
P.O. Box 488 
Ukiah, CA 95482 
Telephone: (707) 462-6846 
FAX: (707) 462-4235 
email: drapport@pacbell.net 
 
 
Attorney for Defendant Owens Valley 
Indian Housing Authority 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 

JULIE FRITCHER, PRO SE 

 

                    Plaintiff, 

 

          v. 

 

OWENS VALLEY INDIAN HOUSING 

AUTHORITY, et. al. 

                      Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No.:  1 11 CV 002071 AWI JLT 
 
  
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND 
AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF 
PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO DISMISS 
 
[F.R.C.P. Rule 12(b)(6)] 
 
Date:              February 6, 2012 
Time:             1:30 p.m. 
Courtroom:    2, 8

th
 Floor 

   
  Judge: Hon. Anthony W. Ishii 

 )  

 

INTRODUCTION 

 Plaintiff, Julie Fritcher, claims that individual defendants, Robert L. Zucco and Linda 

Puckett - who are, respectively, Executive Director and Bookkeeper for OVIHA – have violated 

the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), found at 5 U.S.C. § 552. Specifically, plaintiff alleges 

that the individual defendants have acted outside the scope of their authority as agents of OVIHA 

and that by declining to comply with her request for extensive records allegedly in OVIHA’s 

possession and control, defendants have violated FOIA and caused plaintiff severe emotional 

distress entitling her to damages. Defendants move to dismiss the action in its entirety for failure 

to state a claim on which relief can be granted pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 

12(b)(6). 
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 Plaintiff mistakenly seeks relief under FOIA, which is not applicable to defendant 

OVIHA, a tribal housing authority, or to the individual defendants, even when acting in the scope 

of their employment with OVIHA. Even if FOIA did apply to a tribal housing authority, FOIA 

does not entitle plaintiff to recover damages allegedly caused by defendants’ failure to produce 

the requested records. In addition, plaintiff could not bring an action under FOIA in federal court 

before exhausting available administrative remedies. Accordingly, plaintiff’s claims for relief 

should be dismissed for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

On August 16, 2011, plaintiff submitted a request for various records of  OVIHA, under 

the authority of the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. §552. (Declaration of Robert 

Zucco in Support of Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss (“Zucco Declaration”), pp. 1-2, ¶ 4.) OVIHA 

is an Indian housing authority established by an ordinance adopted by the Lone Pine Paiute-

Shoshone Tribe (“Tribe”). (Zucco Declaration, p. 1, ¶ 3, Exh. 1.) A true and correct copy of the 

Tribe’s housing authority ordinance is attached as Exhibit 1 to the Zucco Declaration. On August 

20, 2011, OVHIA responded to plaintiff’s request for records, informing her that OVIHA 

declined to produce the requested records because 1) FOIA does not apply to an entity of an 

Indian tribe established under tribal law, 2) neither the Tribe nor OVIHA has adopted laws 

requiring OVIHA to produce records in response to requests, 3) producing all requested records 

would be burdensome, and 4) the requested records contained personal information about other 

tribal members that OVIHA would refuse to disclose, even if it was subject to FOIA.  Zucco 

Declaration, p. 2, ¶ 4, Exh. 2.  A true and correct copy of OVIHA’s response letter to plaintiff is 

attached to the Zucco Declaration as Exhibit 2.  In response, plaintiff filed the current action in 

this Court.  

ARGUMENT 

A complaint may be dismissed under Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6) when it fails to state a 

claim upon which relief can be granted. In evaluating a motion to dismiss for failure to state a 

claim, a court must accept as true all allegations contained in the complaint and must view the 

complaint in the light most favorable to the plaintiff. NL Industries, Inc. v. Kaplan, 792 F.2d 896, 
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898 (9th Cir. 1986). Moreover, the plaintiff must allege factual allegations beyond the 

speculative level, and the court must accept the allegations of the complaint as true and dismiss 

the case only when a plaintiff fails to demonstrate that a cause of action exists upon those 

allegations. See Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 545 (2007): (“[A] plaintiff's 

obligation to provide the grounds of his entitlement to relief requires more than labels and 

conclusions, and a formulaic recitation of the elements of a cause of action will not do.”) 

Plaintiff alleges that defendants Zucco and Puckett violated FOIA by refusing to comply 

with her request for records kept by OVIHA. In her claim for relief, plaintiff suggests that FOIA 

allows this Court to compel OVIHA to surrender the records she requests and to award Plaintiff 

damages for severe emotional distress. However, OVIHA is not a federal agency subject to 

FOIA.  

FOIA applies to “agencies” which are defined in 25 U.S.C. §551(1) as an “. . . authority 

of the Government of the United States, . . .”  An entity of an Indian tribe established under tribal 

law does not come within this definition of “agency.”    As previously stated, OVIHA was 

established by an ordinance adopted by the Tribe.  Exhibit 1 to the Zucco Declaration.  OVHIA 

was established to provide housing for low income tribal members with federal funds.  The 

Native American Housing and Self-Determination Act (“NAHSDA”), 25 U.S.C. §4101, et seq., 

provides federal funding for housing assistance to low income Native Americans. Furthermore, 

the regulations implementing NAHASDA regulations recognize that FOIA does not apply to the 

records of Indian housing authorities. 24 C.F.R. §1000.556, regarding the responsibilities of 

recipients of funding under NAHSDA, reads as follows: 

 

§ 1000.556 Does the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) apply to recipient 

records?  

FOIA does not apply to recipient records. However, there may be other applicable 

State and tribal access laws or recipient policies which may apply. 

 

 The regulation reflects federal case law that recipients of federal grant 

funds are not subject to FOIA by virtue of their receipt of such grants.  As stated 
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in Needleman v. Healy, 1994 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 21231 (W.D. Penn.):  

Likewise, in an action where plaintiff sought to require a federal fund 

recipient to turn over research data under the Freedom of Information Act, 

the United States Supreme Court, in deciding the fund recipient was not an 

agent of the federal government, wrote:  

 

Grants of federal funds generally do not create a partnership or 

joint venture with the recipient, nor do they serve to convert acts of 

the recipient from private acts to governmental acts absent 

extensive, detailed and virtually day-to-day supervision. Forsham 

v. Harris, 445 U.S. 169, 180, 63 L. Ed. 2d 293, 100 S. Ct. 977 

(1980) (emphasis added). 

 A review of NAHASDA and its implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 1000 reveals 

that OVIHA is not subject to day-today supervision by the United States Department of Housing 

and Urban Development (“HUD”), the federal agency that administers NAHASDA.  In fact, as 

stated in 24 U.S.C. §4101(7) 

 
The Congress finds that-- 

    

(7) Federal assistance to meet these responsibilities shall be provided in a manner that 

recognizes the right of Indian self-determination and tribal self-governance . . .  

 

 Plaintiff cannot state a cause of action against OVIHA or the individual defendants acting 

within the scope of their employment with OVIHA for failure to comply with FOIA, because 

OVIHA is not obligated to comply with FOIA. 

 Moreover, plaintiff cannot recover damages based on a failure to comply with a FOIA 

request. While a prevailing complainant in a FOIA action may be awarded attorney fees and 

other litigation costs reasonably incurred, the judicial review provisions of FOIA do not provide 

for relief in the form of money damages. 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(E).  Plaintiff has failed to state a 

claim upon which relief can be granted and defendant urges the Court to dismiss all claims of the 

Complaint pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedures. 
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CONCLUSION 

For the reasons set forth above, Defendant requests the Court to dismiss the Complaint in 

its entirety for failure to state a claim because plaintiff’s claims for relief do not allege a viable 

cause of action. 

Dated: January 6, 2011    RAPPORT AND MARSTON 

       /s/ David J. Rapport     

      By: ___________________________ 

       David J. Rapport, Attorney for Defendants 
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DAVID J. RAPPORT - SBN 054384 
RAPPORT AND MARSTON 
405 West Perkins Street 
Ukiah, CA 95482 
Telephone: (707) 462-6846 
FAX: (707) 462-4235 
email: drapport@pacbell.net 
 
 
Attorney for plaintiff Owens Valley 
Indian Housing Authority 
 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 

JULIE FRITCHER, PRO SE 

 

                    Plaintiff, 

 

          v. 

 

OWENS VALLEY INDIAN HOUSING 

AUTHORITY, 

                      Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No.:  1 11 CV 002071 AWI JLT 
 
 
DECLARATION OF ROBERT ZUCCO IN 

SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S MOTION 

TO DISMISS 

 
 
Date:     February 6, 2012          
Time:    1:30 p.m. 
Ctrm.:    2, 8

th
 Floor     

   
  Judge:    Hon. Anthony W. Ishii  

 )  

 I, Robert Zucco, declare as follows: 

 1. I am the Executive Director for the Owens Valley Indian Housing Authority 

(“OVIHA”). I am submitting this declaration in support of defendant’s motion to dismiss for 

failure to state a claim. I could testify to the contents of this declaration from personal knowledge 

or the official and business records of OVIHA, if called as a witness herein. 

 2.  In my capacity as the Executive Director, I am the custodian of all official records 

of OVIHA.  

 3.   Attached to this declaration as Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of Ordinance 

No. 4 adopted by the Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe establishing OVIHA. 

 4. Attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of the letter sent to Julie 
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Fritcher in response to her request for documents under the Federal Freedom of Information Act 

(“FOIA”) which she submitted to OVIHA on August 16, 2011. 

 I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

 Executed on January 5, 2012, at Lone Pine, California. 

 

        /s/ Robert Zucco 

        __________________________ 

        Robert Zucco 
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